TANDRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

FULL COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of the Council held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Station Road East, Oxted on the 15 December 2022 at 7.30pm.

PRESENT: Councillors Wren (Chair), Botten (Vice-Chair), Allen, Bilton, Blackwell, Bloore, Booth, Caulcott, Cooper, Crane, Evans, C.Farr, S.Farr, Flower, Gillman, Gray, Groves, Hammond, Jones, Langton, Lockwood, North, Prew, Pursehouse, Robinson, Sayer, Shiner, Stamp, Steeds, Swann, C.White and N.White

PRESENT (Virtually): Councillors Chotai, Mansfield, Moore, O'Driscoll and Pinard

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors B.Black, G.Black, Gaffney, Lee and Montgomery

197. MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING ON THE 20TH OCTOBER 2022

These minutes were confirmed and signed as a correct record.

198. MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING ON THE 20TH OCTOBER 2022

These minutes were confirmed and signed as a correct record.

199. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

(i) Fundraising

The Chair gave thanks to everyone who came to her quiz night on Saturday 3rd December. The evening had been a great success with over £1,000 raised for her charities.

The Chair appealed to Councillors to support her 'Jive Aces' charity jazz concert at Caterham School on Wednesday, 15th February 2023 at 7.30pm. She also referred to her upcoming "Hello Spring" Ball in March 2023.

(ii) Ex-Councillor Rod Stead

The Chair was sorry to announce that Rod Stead, a former well-known Caterham Councillor, had recently passed away. He served from 2010 to 2018, representing the Queens Park Ward. Members stood in silence for one minute as a mark of respect.

200. QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER STANDING ORDER 30

Questions had been submitted by Councillors Bloore and Cooper. Details of the questions and responses are attached at Appendix A.

201. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

RESOLVED – that the reports of the following meetings be received, and the recommendations therein, be adopted:

Community Services Committee – 10th November 2022

Housing Committee – 17th November 2022

Planning Policy Committee – 24th November 2022

Strategy & Resources Committee – 1st December 2022

Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 6th December 2022

Planning Committee – 8th December 2022

In accordance with Standing Order 13(3), Councillor Cooper wished it recorded that he abstained from voting on the reception of the report of the Housing Committee on the 17th November 2022.

202. MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR O'DRISCOLL UNDER STANDING ORDER 7

Councillor O'Driscoll introduced the following motion:

"This Council recognises that accessibility to playground equipment for everyone in our communities should be a right and not a luxury.

Furthermore, this Council recognises that an inequality exists where not everybody in our community is able to access playground equipment and will take steps to make sure this inequality no longer exists.

Therefore, this Council commits to providing playground equipment for those in our District with disabilities and long-term health conditions in locations agreed by members of the Community Services Committee at their next meeting and funding shall be made available to provide these facilities before March 2024"

The motion was seconded by Councillor Steeds.

Councillor Wren, seconded by Councillor O'Driscoll, proposed "that the matter be referred, without discussion, to the Community Services Committee at its next meeting for consideration and debate."

Upon being put to a vote, this amendment was carried.

RESOLVED – that the motion be referred to the Community Services Committee at its next meeting (17th January 2023) for consideration and debate.

APPENDIX A APPENDIX A

COUNCIL - 15TH DECEMBER 2022 STANDING ORDER 30 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES

Question from Councillor Bloore

Question to the Chair of the Council (Councillor Wren)

At the last Full Council Meeting on 20th October, Cllr Cooper asked a Section 30 Question about a Section 2 decision. Furthermore he put a motion, to council, to have the relevant information provided to all members, on a confidential basis. This was denied, I suspect because of the nature of subject matter in that particular case.

However, there is a real issue to be addressed here, about due process and transparency.

Once a Committee agrees to move into Part 2, there is no readily available and easy to access recording of proceedings, and neither are there any further notes taken.

Therefore, when the Committee report is presented by the Committee Chairman at Full Council to be accepted, the members who were not on the Committee have no information as to the details of the issues concerned but are required to vote to accept the report. This is demonstrably anti-democratic and lacking in transparency.

Will the Chairman accept that, in the interests of good governance, this procedure needs to be reviewed in order that Members, at the very least, can have some simple way of knowing what has transpired under any such Part 2 discussions?

Response from Councillor Wren

Councillor Wren stated that the Council's initial position is always in favour of disclosing as much information as possible about any decisions the Council is due to consider and determine. Only in limited circumstances do Officers consider whether information should be withheld where there is a justification, in law, for doing so. Exempt and confidential reports are very much the exception in the Council's business. The question of whether or not a report should be exempt is initially undertaken by a 'Proper Officer' who needs to reach a view that it is likely that this part of the meeting should not be open to the public and press. The Local Government Act 1972 quite rightly recognises that there will be situations where the proper functioning of a local authority requires meetings to be held in private.

Ultimately, the power to decide on whether an item of business on a Committee or Full Council agenda remains "exempt" does reside with the Members. Should Members make a decision to remain in public session, then clearly the reports would be duly made available to the public and published on the Council's website.

When a report contains exempt information, the decision must be recorded but does not need to be made available to the public. An example of this is Minute 165 in the Council Book for this meeting. However, this restriction does not remove the right of a Councillor to request access to Part 2 reports they have an interest in. Access would usually be granted. The same would apply to decisions made by the Committee. The Constitution also provides that any Councillors may attend meetings of any Committee or Sub-Committee of which they are not members, and therefore observe, for themselves, any Part 2 discussions.

Supplementary Question from Councillor Bloore

Thank you for your response. I note that there are two part 2 items for acceptance tonight. Are you content that Members have studied the relevant material and are fully conversant with the issues and decisions they are being asked to accept?

Response from Councillor Wren

Councillor Wren stated that it was known that the items were to be received by Council this evening and Members could have asked for additional information, attended the relevant committee meetings or spoken to the Chairs if they required additional information. She added that she would take away what Councillor Bloore had said and will obtain some more information if there's anything she hadn't been able to answer.

Supplementary Question from Councillor Bloore

Councillor Bloore clarified that he was seeking a simple way by which Councillors could see or learn more about Part 2 items of committee meetings they did not attend.

Response from Councillor Wren

Councillor Wren noted the request and would take advice from Officers.

Question from Councillor Cooper

Question to the Chair of the Planning Committee (Councillor Blackwell)

At the TDC Planning Committee meeting held last Thursday, 8th December, under Item 5.2 2022/762 Hillview Farm (reported under Item 6.6 in this agenda) it was stated, very clearly, by the TDC Chief Planning Officer, that certain activities being undertaken at an area of Hillview Farm were not lawful. Therefore:

Firstly: What has the Chairman done to have these activities investigated by the TDC Enforcement Team?

Secondly: Also, that such a statement does not reflect well on Tandridge District Council. So, does the Chairman of the Planning Committee agree with me that it would seem that the local TDC Councillors have failed in their duty to monitor and report such activities in their ward?

Response from Councillor Blackwell

Councillor Blackwell responded that she was first aware of this issue when she read the planning report which she was sent at the same time as all other councillors on the Planning Committee. She then contacted the Chief Planning Officer immediately to ask why, if he felt there was unlawful activity, had enforcement officers not been called to the site. The Chief Planning Officer had undertaken to investigate this. Councillor Blackwell had since asked for an update and was awaiting his response.

Secondly, she and Councillor Booth had never been contacted regarding unlawful activities at this site. The site had been occupied on the same basis for about 30 years and, as far as she could gather, previous Councillors had never been contacted either. She hoped Councillor Cooper could appreciate that, unless a Councillor is contacted regarding a concern about enforcement issues, there is no justification for Councillors to make contact with local businesses or residents.

Supplementary Questions from Councillor Cooper

What has been done to have these concerns of unlawful activities investigated by enforcement since the meeting and what is the status and direction of this investigation?

Secondly, given the state of the site that some Members had visited prior to the Planning Committee meeting, why were issues not noticed?

Response from Councillor Blackwell

Councillor Blackwell responded by stating that the Chief Planning Officer is in charge of the enforcement team and an update from him regarding the status of enforcement action had been requested. This would be shared with Members.

She stated that she was aware of the site and had viewed it but that, unless on a formal site visit, it is not appropriate for Planning Committee members to trespass on private property. Therefore, she had not walked through to the back of the site. In terms of the internal space on the site, there was lawful permission for car repairs on the unit, but it was thought that parts of the units designated for storage were being used for car repairs.

